
 
 
 
 

Zoning Board of Appeals 
March 28, 2012 Regular Meeting 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 
 
Subject: ZBA12-004, 200 West Summit 
 
Summary:    
 
Panos Tharouniatis is requesting one variance from Chapter 55(Zoning) Section 5:57 
(Averaging an Existing front setback line), of 20 feet for construction of a residential structure 
into the front setback, 40 feet is required (Averaged Front Setback). 
 
Description and Discussion: 
 
The subject parcel is located at 200 West Summit and is zoned R4C (Multiple-Family) and is 
located on the corner of Wildt and Summit, just west of the railroad tracks. 
 
The request is discussed in detail below: 

 
The petitioner is proposing to demolish the existing 800 square foot house and construct a 
4,000 square foot duplex. Each duplex unit will be approximately 1,950 square feet and 
contain 3 bedrooms above a two car garage. The garages will share a single drive 
accessed from Wildt Street. The pedestrian entrances will also face Wildt Street.   Each 
unit will have a small patio in the side yard (west side of parcel) and an elevated uncovered 
porch. The variance is being requested for construction of the structure and an attached 
uncovered porch 20 feet from the front property line of Summit. The main structure will be 
located 25 feet from the front property line at its closest point, and the elevated uncovered 
porch will extend to 20 feet and will not be enclosed.  
 
The required front setback is 25 for the R4C district. However, Chapter 55, Section 5:57 
requires averaging with adjacent properties within 100 feet of the property line of the 
subject property. The subject parcel is located on a ‘short’ block with only one adjacent 
property to average. That parcel is 800 Edward Street, which is approximately 50 feet from 
the property line along Summit.  As a result, the calculated results in a required front 
setback of 40 feet (the maximum required averaged front setback).  
 
While Section 5:57(Averaged Front Setback) does not permit including parcels across 
streets, the petitioner has provided averaged calculations to provide context to the 
proposed variance request. The petitioner has calculated the averaged setbacks along   
Summit to the west across Edward Street as 15 feet 9 inches and the averaged front 
setback to the east across Summit and the railroad tracks as 4 feet.  The existing house 
that will be demolished is 6 feet 9 inches from the front property line.  
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Standards for Approval- Variance 
 
The Zoning Board of Appeals has all the power granted by State law and by Section 5:99, 
Application of the Variance Power from the City of Ann Arbor Zoning Ordinance.  The following 
criteria shall apply: 
 
(a). That the alleged hardships or practical difficulties, or both, are exceptional and 

peculiar to the property of the person requesting the variance, and result from 
conditions which do not exist generally throughout the City. 
 
The lot is located at a corner and is an unusual shape with a curved front property line 
along Wildt Street. While the required setback for R4C is 25 feet, the averaging of only 
one adjacent parcel (set back over 50 feet) moves the required setback to 40 feet. 
There is a significant slope rising over 20 feet toward the northwest corner of the parcel.  
 
 

(b). That the alleged hardships or practical difficulties, or both, which will result from 
a failure to grant the variance, include substantially more than mere 
inconvenience, inability to attain a higher financial return, or both. 

  
 The variance is being requested for construction of a duplex and attached uncovered 

porch 20 feet from the front property line. The main structure will be located 25 feet from 
the front property line at its closest point. The elevated uncovered porch will extend to 
20 feet and will not be enclosed. The required averaged setback of 40 feet reduces the 
allowable building envelope significantly and could result in greater impact to the slope 
in the rear resulting in construction of large retaining walls and an extensive storm water 
management system. 

 
 
(c). That allowing the variance will result in substantial justice being done, 

considering the public benefits intended to be secured by this Chapter, the 
individual hardships that will be suffered by a failure of the Board to grant a 
variance, and the rights of others whose property would be affected by the 
allowance of the variance. 

 
The parcel is located on a ‘short’ block of Summit, containing only one other property 
adjacent to the west. The house on this parcel is located over 50 feet from Summit and 
has a functional front yard, including access, along Edward Street. The owner (and 
resident) of this house has signed a letter of support for the variance request. The 
petitioner has also submitted materials (attached) illustrating that the proposed structure 
will be consistent with the majority of structures along the north side of Summit Street.  
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(d). That the conditions and circumstances on which the variance request is based 

shall not be a self imposed hardship or practical difficulty. 
 
 The significant slope of the site is not a self imposed hardship. Reducing the building 

envelope by utilizing the averaged setback for 40 feet will result in a redesign of the 
project that could impact the topography of the site significantly. This would result in 
extensive retaining walls and storm water management systems on the site.   

 
(e). A variance approved shall be the minimum variance that will make possible a 

reasonable use of the land or structure 
 

The variance, if approved, will permit construction of a structure 25 feet front the front 
property line, which is the required front setback for R4C before the averaged setback 
calculation. The uncovered porch extending into the front setback of Summit extends 
the encroachment to 20 feet from the front property line. The impact will be minimal 
given that the porch will be unclosed above and below the floor, and the proposed front 
setback will be consistent with the majority of structures along Summit.  
 

 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
 
Matthew J.  Kowalski, AICP 
City Planner 
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Hello: 
  
I own the house at 800 Edward St which is next to 200 West Summit Street. I will not be 
at the hearing at 6:00pm March 28th but I want to make comments for the record. 
Please grant the variance a.s.a.p. I want that abandoned, condemned house and 
outbuilding and all the dead trees out of there. Thank you Mr. Tharouniatis! 
  
Best Regards, 

Randy MARLOW 
Great Lakes 

Office: 248 349 4669 x106 
randy.marlow@3ds.com 

 

mailto:Randy.MARLOW@3ds.com
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